GENERAL AGREEMENT ON

TARIFFS AND TRADE

RESTRICTED
C/M/174

24 February 1984
Limited Distribution

COUNCIL
7 February 1984

MINUTES OF MEETING

Held in the Centre William Rappard on 7 February 1984

Chairman: Mr. F. Jaramillo (Colombia)

Subjects discussed:

84-0315

10.

El Salvador

- Request for observer status

Safeguards

Structural Adjustment and Trade
Policy

- Report by the Working Party

Aspects of Trade in High-Technology
Goods

Trade in Counterfeit Goods

European Economic Community - Quantitative
restrictions on imports of certain
products from Hong Kong

- Follow-up on the report of the Panel

United States - Article XIX action on
imports of certain specialty steels

- Notification of compensatory measures by

the European Economic Community

Agreement between the European Economic
Community and Yugoslavia

- Biennial report

Committee on Balance-of-Payments
Restrictions

(a) Consultation with Brazil

(b) Consultation with Ghana

(c) Consultations with Peru, Tunisia and

Turkey
(d) Arrangements for consultations in 1984
(e) The trading environment and balance-
of-payments consultations

Canada - Foreign Investment Review Act
(FIRA)

- Report of the Panel

12

12

15



C/M/174
Page 2

11. United States Agricultural Adjustment Act 17
- Twenty-sixth annual report by the
United States
12, Administrative and Financial Questions 20
- Assessment of additional contributionmns
on Belize to the 1983 and 1984 Budgets
and advance to the Working Capital Fund

13. Problems of Trade in Certain Natural 20
Resource Products
14. European Economic Community - Imports of 21

newsprint from Canada
- Request by Canada for consultations
undeY Article XXIII:1
15. Protectionism 21
16. Trade in Textiles 22

1. El Salvador - Request for observer status (L/5588)

The Chairman drew attention to document L/5588, containing a request
by El Salvador for observer status. He noted the reference in the
document to El Salvador's interest in developing its links with GATT,
which might enable it in the future to examine the possibility of -
becoming a contracting party. He proposed that the Council agree to
grant E1l Salvador observer status for Council meetings.

The Council so agreed.

2. Safeguards

The Chairman recalled that the CONTRACTING PARTIES had agreed at
their 1983 Session "that the Council should conclude the work of drawing
up a comprehensive understanding as called for by Ministers within such a
time frame that it would be placed for adoption by the CONTRACTING
PARTIES at their 1984 session” (SR 39/1).

In accordance with this decision, he had recently restarted, with
the active support of the Director-General, the process of informal
consultations on safeguards in order to find a way to achieve the task
given to the Council. The basis of this work would be the mandate given
in the 1982 Ministerial Declaration (BISD 29S/12-13). He hoped that the
necessary transparency would be ensured in this work, and that all
interested delegations would keep in touch with the process of
consultation and would contribute to fulfilling the Council's task. He
intended to keep the Council members regularly and fully informed of the
situation and of progress made in the consultations.

The Council took note of the statement.



o

c/M/174
Page 3

3. Structural Adjustment and Trade Policy
- Report by the Working Party (L/5568)

The Chairman recalled that in November 1983 the Council had
discussed the report of the Working Party on Structural Adjustment and
Trade Policy (L/5568), and had agreed to revert to the report at its next
meeting, so as to complete its consideration and decide on such further
action as might be called for. Since then, informal consultations had
been held between various delegations on this issue. He understood that
these consultations had indicated a general recognition of the importance
of the problem of structural adjustment for international trade and in
relation to GATT principles and objectives. The consultations had also
shown that while there was acceptance of the need for further work in
this area having regard to the matters dealt with in the Working Party's
report, more reflection was needed to determine how this work might be
carried forward and the modalities that might be adopted for this
purpose. He proposed that the Council allow more time for these
consultations to continue, and revert to the issue at one of its next
meetings.

The representative of Jamaica recalled that work had started in GATIT
on structural adjustment in 1965 and had been abandoned in 1972 just when
the expert group had concluded its initial phase of data collection and
had reached a number of conclusions. Active consideration was then being
given to the establishment of an early-warning system, to the
formalization of a product-specific notification system, to the study of
adjustment assistance measures which could be used to avoid escape clause
action, and to the study of sectors or areas where more active adjustment
assistance measures aimed at trade liberalization would be desirable.
However, no action was taken on these issues until the effort had been
restarted in the Consultative Group of Eighteen in 1978, though on a much
broader front. A working party had been established and had considered a
number of issues submitted by contracting parties on their own national
experiences. The report now before the Council summarized the work of
the past 2 1/2 years; Jamaica considered that further action was
necessary, but it should be on more pragmatic, specific and operational
lines, and should include, but not limit itself to the examination of
positive adjustment measures where safeguard measures were being taken.
He said that there was a strong body of opinion that if structural
adjustment proceeded efficiently, there would be far less recourse to
safeguard measures; however, since the beginning of the 1970s and the
rise of protectionist measures and policies, the international structural
adjustment process had not worked as efficiently as it should have done.
By way of illustration, once a number of developing countries had begun
to show a degree of competitiveness, they had faced new protectionist
measures applied to their products by industrialized countries; the
pricing system had become distorted due to many factors, including
exchange rates and substantial government subsidies; trade-distorting
domestic measures had increased as the major trading partners had sought



c/M/174
Page 4

to maintain the terms of trade in their favour and to prop up industries
which were not competitive with new suppliers. There had clearly emerged
an increased concentration of market power by large enterprises operating
within the boundaries of the major trading partners, seeking to ensure
traditional shares in production and trade, for example in industries
such as automobiles and electronics. Moreover, several governments had
targeted sectors for massive state support, for example in high

~ technology or services; and it was those same governments that preached
the need for open trading policies to developing countries. Many of
these actions were taken because of trade-distorting domestic measures
which forced industries to enter markets via investments in joint
ventures. His delegation referred to work in progress in the OECD and
queried whether such actions encouraged structural adjustment in line
with underlying evolving patterns of comparative advantage.

The representative of Egypt supported the statement by the
representative of Jamaica.

The Council took note of the statements and agreed to revert to the
-igsue at one of its next meetings.

4. Aspects of Trade in High-Technology Goods (SR.38/9, C/W/409/Rev.2
and Corr.l)

The Chairman recalled that the Council had most recently considered
this item at its meeting on 1-2 November 1983, when it had agreed to
revert to this item at its next meeting.

The representative of the United States said that during the
Council's earlier discussions of the US proposal (C/W/409/Rev.2 and
Corr.l) it had become apparent that a number of delegations could support
the study called for in that document. Meanwhile, there had been a
number of other developments in this area over the past year in other
fora, notably in the Summit work group on technology, growth and
employment and in the OECD. The United States had also joined with some
other contracting parties in bilateral working groups focussed on trade
in high technology goods. He added that some contracting parties were
still unjustifiably uncertain of US motives in the high-technology area,
and said that the capital-intensive nature of high technology goods
production made market access considerations more important than they
might be in other sectors, especially for smaller countries whose
domestic markets did not have the absorptive capacity of larger
countries. Although the United States had so far failed to convince one
of its major trading partners that it was in its interest to begin
examining trade in this area within GATT, there was no doubt that this
group of countries considered high technology to be an important sector,
since in the Working Party on Structural Adjustment, its submissions had
included references to plans for development of high technology sectors
and trade. The United States considered it urgent to examine the trade
aspects of high technology in a multilateral framework, rather than
awaiting developments that could lead to increased trade frictioms. This




Cc/M/174
Page 5

was not just a developed country trade issue; high technology industries
were becoming an important force in developing countries' economies.
Also, a process of natural structural adjustment in the developed
countries would only be possible if they moved from traditional
industries toward the high technology area on the basis of economic
market conditions. The United States continued to believe that GATT was
the proper multilateral forum for taking action on issues in the trading
system. Once again, his delegation asked that members of the Council
give favourable consideration to the US proposal.

The representative of the European Communities said that this matter
should be handled without undue haste. There was no question of delaying
tactics; indeed, leaders of the private sector in the Community
considered that high technology should be discussed at a world-wide
level. However, there were a number of important points that needed to
be considered, for instance the implications of military research in high
technology for use in the civilian area. The Community continued to
attach importance to this subject; but it needed to be approached
cautiously. His delegation intended to abide by the letter and spirit of
the 1982 Ministerial Decision (SR.38/9, page 2) on this subject.

The representative of Jamaica said that GATT should indeed examine
the trade aspects of high-technology, without any prejudice as to whether
or not contracting parties would take further action in GATT after such
an. examination. Perhaps this issue should be handed to the Consultative
Group of Eighteen, which could discuss it and then make a recommendation.
His delegation also wondered whether the sectoral studies in this area
being carried out by the Western "Summit" nations and by the OECD could
be made available to countries that were not members of the OECD or of
the "Summit Seven".

The representative of Argentina said that his delegation had
requested further clarification on this subject from countries with a
direct stake in the matter; however, no progress had been made in
providing such clarification. Argentina could not change its position at
this point, but remained willing to listen to worthwhile arguments which
interested parties might introduce to justify special treatment of this
sector within GATT.

The representative of Canada reiterated his delegation's support for
the US proposal. Canada was concerned that although this item had
frequently been on the Council's agenda, it had still not been possible
for the Council to take a decision. Many questions that had been raised
about the proposed study could and should be covered by the study itself.

The representative of Cuba said her delegation considered that it
would be premature to launch the study proposed by the United States.
Moreover, such a study would imply a financial and technical outlay by
the secretariat which might not be justified.



Cc/M/174
Page 6

The representative of Australia said that his country had an
emerging interest in high-technology, and he reiterated his delegation's
view that the Council should decide to move forward on this matter as
soon as possible, so that all Council members could become better
acquainted with the problems associated with high-technology trade.

The representative of Switzerland said that GATT was running the
risk of having its credibility questioned as to its ability to implement
decisions taken by Ministers. Switzerland wanted to implement GATT's work
program in a parallel and homogeneous manner. As for the substance of
this matter, Switzerland also had a direct interest in having the
decision implemented. Care should be taken to avoid a situation in which
high technology was more and more removed from the implementation of the
General Agreement, through all sorts of bilateral, regional or other
special arrangements. Contracting parties should also be aware that high
technology, especially for industrialized countries, if applied in a
liberal manner, could help the process of structural adjustment and
sustain the ability of those countries to continue importing goods from
developing countries at a satisfactory rate.

The representative of Israel reiterated that his country had a stake
in this matter and supported the US proposal. The problem of access to
markets for high-technology goods was becoming increasingly specific;
and GATT should not ignore this problem.

The representative of New Zealand shared the concern that the
credibility of GATT was at stake in its continuing failure to deal with
the matters before it. GATT had to be flexible in dealing with new and
significant developments in international trade. His delegation
reiterated that it was not opposed to the eventual establishment of a
working party to consider this subject, but New Zealand's priorities
dictated that the focus of attention should be elsewhere at the present
time.

The representative of the United States said that he had detected a
willingness on the part of some delegations, which had previously shown
reluctance on this issue, to discuss substance rather than procedure in
the Council. This was a new and positive step. Although his delegation
hesitated to tie up the Council's time by embarking on a long discussion
on this highly complex area, if that was the only way in which to enter a
substantive discussion of the topic in GATT, he would ask his authorities
to consider such a discussion. However, it would be useful for the
secretariat to prepare a paper on which to base such a discussion.

The representative of the European Communities said that a
substantive debate in the Council on this issue would be most timely, but
the Community did not see why the matter should be dealt with in a study
by the secretariat. Nothing in the provisions of the General Agreement
precluded discussion on trade in high-technology goods. A substantive
debate on this topic would not need to be unduly protracted.

The Council took note of the statements and agreed to revert to this
matter at a future meeting.



Cc/M/174
Page 7

5. Trade in Counterfeit Goods (C/W/418, 1/5512)

The Chairman recalled that the Council had most recently considered
this matter at its meeting on 1-2 November 1983, when it had agreed to
revert to it at its next meeting.

He noted that in 1982 the Ministers had instructed '"the Council to
examine the question of counterfeit goods with a view to determining the
appropriateness of joint action in the GATT framework on the trade
aspects of commercial counterfeiting and, if such joint action is found
to be appropriate, the modalities for such action, having full regard to
the competence of other international organizations. For the purposes of
such examination, the CONTRACTING PARTIES request the Director-General to
hold consultations with the Director General of W.I.P.0. in order to
clarify the legal and institutional aspects involved" (BISD 29S/19). The
Chairman noted that the Director-General had reported on his
consultations with the Director General of W.I.P.0. The next step would
be for the Council "to examine the question of counterfeit goods with a
view to determining the appropriateness of joint action in the GATT
framework on the trade aspects of commercial counterfeiting". He said
that following informal consultations, the secretariat was now in the
process of putting together a background paper designed to facilitate the
further work, which would be based on information supplied by interested
delegations and on information presently available in the secretariats of
relevant organizations, including W.I.P.O. The GATT secretariat would
remain in contact with interested delegations and secretariats as work
proceeded on the paper.

The Council took note of the Chairman's statement and agreed to
revert to this issue at a later stage when additional information was
available.

6. European Economic Community - Quantitative restrictions on imports
of certain products from Hong Kong
- Follow-up on the report of the Panel (L/5511)

The Chairman recalled that the Council had most recently considered
this matter at its meeting on 1-2 November 1983, when it had agreed to
revert to it at its next meeting.

The representative of the United Kingdom, speaking on behalf of Hong
Kong, recalled the recommendation by the CONTRACTING PARTIES that France
should terminate the quantitative restrictions in question (L/5511,
paragraph 34); however, that recommendation had still not been
effectively acted upon. Far from removing the restraints, France had
announced, on 19 January 1984, the extension of the quota restrictions
for 1984. Hong Kong was aware that an investigation was currently being
conducted within the European Community on imports of watches, but
considered that the process and the outcome of such an investigation on
the one hand, and the elimination of the quota restraints in compliance







